

## GRAND JUNCTION HOUSING AUTHORITY, GRAND JUNCTION, COLORADO

#### CONTRACT

This CONTRACT made and entered into this  $1^{st}$  day of March, 2016 by and between the **Grand Junction Housing Authority, Grand Junction, Colorado,** a quasigovernment entity in the County of Mesa, State of Colorado, hereinafter in the Contract Documents referred to as the "Owner" and **Inside Story Carpet One** hereinafter in the Contract Documents referred to as the "Contractor."

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Owner advertised that sealed Responses would be received for furnishing all labor, tools, supplies, equipment, materials, and everything necessary and required for the Project described by the Contract Documents and known as <u>Grand</u> <u>Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016 IFB-4146-15-DH</u>.

WHEREAS, the Contract has been awarded to the above named Contractor by the Owner, and said Contractor is now ready, willing and able to perform the Work specified in accordance with the Contract Documents;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the compensation to be paid the Contractor, the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth and subject to the terms hereinafter stated, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1**

<u>Contract Documents</u>: It is agreed by the parties hereto that the following list of instruments, drawings, and documents which are attached hereto, bound herewith, or incorporated herein by reference constitute and shall be referred to either as the "Contract Documents" or the "Contract", and all of said instruments, drawings, and documents taken together as a whole constitute the Contract between the parties hereto, and they are fully a part of this agreement as if they were set out verbatim and in full herein:

- a. The body of this contract agreement:
- b. Solicitation Documents for the Project; Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016;
- c. Notice of Award:
- d. Contractors Response to the Solicitation:

- e. Work Change Requests (directing that changed work be performed);
- f. Field Orders;
- g. Change Orders.

#### ARTICLE 2

<u>Definitions:</u> The clauses provided in the Solicitation apply to the terms used in the Contract and all the Contract Documents.

#### ARTICLE 3

<u>Contract Work:</u> The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, tools, supplies, equipment, materials, and all that is necessary and required to complete the tasks associated with the Work described, set forth, shown, and included in the Contract Documents as indicated in the Solicitation Document.

#### ARTICLE 4

<u>Contract Time</u>: Time is of the essence with respect to this Contract. The Contractor hereby agrees to commence Work under the Contract on or before the date specified in the Solicitation from the Owner, and to achieve Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Work within the time or times specified in the Solicitation.

#### **ARTICLE 5**

<u>Contract Price and Payment Procedures:</u> The Contractor shall accept as complete compensation for the performance and completion of all of the Work specified in the Contract Documents, the unit prices submitted in the Contractor's Price Bid Schedule. If this Contract contains unit price pay items, the Contract Price shall be adjusted in accordance with the actual quantities of items completed and accepted by the Owner at the unit prices quoted in the Solicitation Response. The amount of the Contract Price is and has heretofore been appropriated by the Grand Junction Housing Authority Board of Directors for the use and benefit of this Project. The Contract Price shall not be modified except by Change Order or other written directive of the Owner. The Owner shall not issue a Change Order or other written directive which requires additional work to be performed, which work causes the aggregate amount payable under this Contract to exceed the amount appropriated for this Project, unless and until the Owner provides Contractor written assurance that lawful appropriations to cover the costs of the additional work have been made.

Unless otherwise provided in the Solicitation, monthly partial payments shall be made as the Work progresses. Applications for partial and Final Payment shall be prepared by the Contractor and approved by the Owner in accordance with the Solicitation.

#### ARTICLE 6

<u>Contract Binding:</u> The Owner and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. The Contract

Documents constitute the entire agreement between the Owner and Contractor and may only be altered, amended or repealed by a duly executed written instrument. Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall, without the prior written consent of the other, assign or sublet in whole or in part its interest under any of the Contract Documents and specifically, the Contractor shall not assign any moneys due or to become due without the prior written consent of the Owner.

#### ARTICLE 7

<u>Severability</u>: If any part, portion or provision of the Contract shall be found or declared null, void or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever by any court of competent jurisdiction or any governmental agency having the authority thereover, only such part, portion or provision shall be effected thereby and all other parts, portions and provisions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grand Junction Housing Authority, Grand Junction, Colorado, has caused this Contract to be subscribed and sealed and attested in its behalf; and the Contractor has signed this Contract the day and the year first mentioned herein.

The Contract is executed in two counterparts.

#### **GRAND JUNCTION HOUSING AUTHORITY, GRAND JUNCTION, COLORADO**

Lori Rosendalıl - (OO, Grand Junction Housing 2014 hopity:00 MT By: Lori Rosendahl, COO Date

#### **Inside Story Carpet One**

DocuSigned by:

8U80.33508344Bb

By: Justin Well - Inside Story Carpet One

3/1/2016 | 11:40 MT

Date

Justin Webb - Inside Storommerie alongecialist

Bid Date: 1-15-16

Project: IFB-4146-15-DH "Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016"

Bidding Company: Inside Story Carpet One
Name of Authorized Agent: Justa Webb
Email Web, tattoo @ hotmail.com
Telephone <u>970-245-7300 Address 360 West Gumison Ave.</u>
City Grand Junction State CO. Zip 8/501

The undersigned Bidder, in compliance with the Invitation for Bids, having examined the Instruction to Bidders, General Contract Conditions, Statement of Work, Specifications, and any and all Addenda thereto, having investigated the location of, and conditions affecting the proposed work, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials and supplies, and to perform all work for the Project in accordance with Contract Documents, within the time set forth and at the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract Documents, of which this Contractor's Bid Form is a part.

The undersigned Contractor does hereby declare and stipulate that this offer is made in good faith without collusion or connection to any person(s) providing an offer for the same work, and that it is made in pursuance of, and subject to, all terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, the Specifications, and all other Solicitation Documents, all of which have been examined by the undersigned.

The Contractor also agrees that if awarded the Contract, to provide insurance certificates within ten (10) working days of the date of Notification of Award. Submittal of this offer will be taken by the Owner as a binding covenant that the Contractor will be prepared to complete the project in its entirety.

The Owner reserves the right to make the award on the basis of the offer deemed most favorable, to waive any formalities or technicalities and to reject any or all offers. It is further agreed that this offer may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after closing time. Submission of clarifications and revised offers automatically establish a new thirty day (30) period.

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: the undersigned Contractor acknowledges receipt of Addenda to the Solicitation, Specifications, and other Contract Documents.

State number of Addenda received:

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure all Addenda have been received and acknowledged.

#### DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B

PRICE BID SCHEDULE: IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

	Description	Unit Price
1. Sqft	Price per square foot for all flooring removal, cleaning, prep and disposal.	554

Item 1 Unit Price Written: fifty five. Cents per Square ft

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
2.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of the underlayment, as per scope of work/specifications.	200

# Item 2 Unit Price Written: Two dollars for Square ft

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
3.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of commercial carpet squares, as per scope of work/specifications.	326

# Item 3 Unit Price Written: Three dollars and twenty Six Cents.

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
4.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), as per scope of work/specifications.	277

Item 4 Unit Price Written: Two dollars and Seventy Seven Cents

By signing below, the Undersigned agree to comply with all terms and conditions contained herein.

Company: _	Insid.	Story	Carpet	One	 
Authorized Signature:	Junih	U. h	666		
Title: <u>5a/</u>	esperson/I	ggtaller			 





**Purchasing Division** 



# Invitation for Bid

### IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

**Responses Due:** 

January 15, 2016 prior to 3:00 PM MST <u>Accepting Electronic Responses Only</u> <u>Responses Only Submitted Through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing</u> System (RMEPS)

https://www.rockymountainbidsystem.com/default.asp

(Purchasing Representative does not have access or control of the vendor side of RMEPS. If website or other problems arise during response submission, vendor <u>MUST</u> contact RMEPS to resolve issue prior to the response deadline. 800-835-4603)

Purchasing Representative:

Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer <u>duaneh@gjcity.org</u> Phone (970) 244-1545

This document has been developed specifically to solicit competitive responses for this solicitation, and may not be the same as previous City of Grand Junction/Mesa County solicitations. All vendors are urged to thoroughly review this solicitation prior to responding. Submittal by **FAX, EMAIL or HARD COPY IS NOT ACCEPTABLE** for this solicitation.

# **Invitation for Bids**

### Table of Contents

- Section 1 Instruction to Bidders
- Section 2 General Contract Conditions
- Section 3 Statement of Work
- Section 4 Contractor's Bid Form

Price Proposal/Bid Schedule Form

Attachments

### 1. Instructions to Bidders

- **1.1. Purpose:** The City of Grand Junction, on behalf of the Grand Junction Housing Authority, is soliciting competitive bids from qualified and interested companies to establish an annual contract for all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies required to provide pricing for flooring and/or carpet replacement, including installation and disposal, on an "as needed basis" for the various apartment, townhome, and condominium units for the Grand Junction Housing Authority, as per the scope and specifications stated herein. All dimensions and scope of work should be verified by Contractors prior to submission of bids.
- **1.2. The Owner:** The Owner is the Grand Junction Housing Authority (GJHA) and is referred to throughout this Solicitation. The term Owner means the Owner or his authorized representative.
- 1.3. Submission: Each bid response shall be submitted in electronic format only, and only through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing website (https://www.rockymountainbidsystem.com/default.asp). This site offers both "free" and "paving" registration options that allow for full access of the Owner's documents and for electronic submission of proposals. (Note: "free" registration may take up to 24 hours to process. Please Plan accordingly.) Please view our "Electronic Vendor Registration Guide" at http://www.gjcity.org/BidOpenings.aspx for details. (Purchasing Representative does not have access or control of the vendor side of RMEPS. If website or other problems arise during response submission, vendor MUST contact RMEPS to resolve issue prior to the response deadline. 800-835-4603)
- **1.4. Printed Form for Price Bid:** All Price Bids must be made upon the Contractor's Bid Form attached, and should give the amounts both in words and in figures, and must be signed and acknowledged by the bidder.
- **1.5. Exclusions:** No oral, telephonic, emailed, or facsimile bid will be considered
- **1.6. Contract Documents:** The complete IFB and bidder's response compose the Contract Documents. Copies of these documents can be obtained from the City Purchasing website, <u>http://www.gjcity.org/BidOpenings.aspx</u>.
- **1.7. Examination of Specifications:** Bidders shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with the project Statement of Work. The failure or omission of any Offeror to receive or examine any form, addendum, or other document shall in no way relieve any Offeror from any obligation with respect to his bid. The submission of a bid shall be taken as evidence of compliance with this section.
- **1.8.** Questions Regarding Statement of Work: Any information relative to interpretation of Scope of Work or specifications shall be requested of the Purchasing Representative, in writing, in ample time prior to the response time.
- **1.9.** Addenda & Interpretations: If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this solicitation, a written addendum will be posted electronically on the City's website at <a href="http://www.gicity.org/BidOpenings.aspx">http://www.gicity.org/BidOpenings.aspx</a>. The Owner is not bound by any oral representations, clarifications, or changes made in the written specifications by

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B Owner, unless such clarification or change is provided in written addendum form from the City Purchasing Representative.

- **1.10. Taxes:** The Owner is exempt from State retail and Federal tax. The bid price must be net, exclusive of taxes.
- **1.11.** Offers Binding 60 Days: Unless otherwise specified, all formal offers submitted shall be binding for sixty (60) calendar days following opening date, unless the Bidder, upon request of the Purchasing Representative, agrees to an extension.
- **1.12. Collusion Clause:** Each bidder by submitting a bid certifies that it is not party to any collusive action or any action that may be in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act. Any and all bids shall be rejected if there is evidence or reason for believing that collusion exists among bidders. The Owner may, or may not, accept future bids for the same services or commodities from participants in such collusion.
- **1.13. Public Disclosure Record:** If the bidder has knowledge of their employee(s) or sub-contractors having an immediate family relationship with a City/County employee or elected official, the bidder must provide the Purchasing Representative with the name(s) of these individuals. These individuals are required to file an acceptable "Public Disclosure Record", a statement of financial interest, before conducting business with the City/County.

### 2. General Contract Conditions for Construction Projects

- 2.1. The Contract: This Invitation for Bid, submitted documents, and any negotiations, when properly accepted by the City/County, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the City/County and Contractor. The contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The contract may be amended or modified with Change Orders, Field Orders, or Addendums.
- **2.2. The Work:** The term Work includes all labor necessary to produce the construction required by the Contract Documents, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in such construction.
- 2.3. Execution, Correlation, Intent, and Interpretations: The Contract Documents shall be signed in not less than triplicate by the Owner (City/County) and Contractor. City/County will provide the contract. By executing the contract, the Contractor represents that he/she has visited the site, familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one, shall be as binding as if required by all. The intention of the documents is to include all labor, materials, equipment and other items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the scope of work as defined in the technical specifications and drawings contained herein. All drawings, specifications and copies furnished by the City/County are, and shall remain, City/County property. They are not to be used on any other project, and with the exception of one contract set for each party to the contract, are to be returned to the owner on request at the completion of the work.

- DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B 2.4. Ine Owner: The Owner is the City of Grand Junction and/or Mesa County, Colorado and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents. The term Owner means the Owner or his authorized representative. The Owner shall, at all times, have access to the work wherever it is in preparation and progress. The Contractor shall provide facilities for such access. The Owner will make periodic visits to the site to familiarize himself generally with the progress and quality of work and to determine, in general, if the work is proceeding in accordance with the contract Based on such observations and the Contractor's Application for documents. Payment, the Owner will determine the amounts owing to the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts, as provided in the contract. The Owner will have authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract documents. Whenever, in his reasonable opinion, he considers it necessary or advisable to insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require the Contractor to stop the work or any portion, or to require special inspection or testing of the work, whether or not such work can be then be fabricated, installed, or completed. The Owner will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, and sub-Contractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work.
  - 2.5. Contractor: The Contractor is the person or organization identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents. The term Contractor means the Contractor or his authorized representative. The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the General Contract Conditions of the Contract, Specification and Drawings, Scope of Work, Addenda and Modifications and shall at once report to the Owner any error, inconsistency or omission he may discover. Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any damage resulting from such errors, inconsistencies or omissions. The Contractor shall not commence work without clarifying Drawings, Specifications, or Interpretations.
  - 2.6. **Sub-Contractors:** A sub-contractor is a person or organization who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform any of the work at the site. The term subcontractor is referred to throughout the contract documents and means a subcontractor or his authorized representative.
  - 2.7. Award of Sub-Contractors & Other Contracts for Portions of the Work: As soon as practicable after bids are received and prior to the award of the contract, the successful Contractor shall furnish to the Owner, in writing for acceptance, a list of the names of the sub-contractors or other persons or organizations proposed for such portions of the work as may be designated in the proposal requirements, or, if none is so designated, the names of the sub-contractors proposed for the principal portions of the work. Prior to the award of the contract, the Owner shall notify the successful Contractor in writing if, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any person or organization on such list. If, prior to the award of the contract, the Owner has a reasonable and substantial objection to any person or organization on such list, and refuses in writing to accept such person or organization, the successful Contractor may, prior to the award, withdraw their proposal without forfeiture of proposal security. If the successful Contractor submits an acceptable substitute with an increase in the proposed price to cover the difference in cost occasioned by the substitution, the Owner may, at their discretion, accept the increased proposal or may disgualify the Contractor. If, after the award, the Owner refuses to accept any person or organization on such list, the Contractor shall submit an acceptable substitute and the contract sum shall be increased or

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B uecreased by the unreferce in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued. However, no increase in the contract sum shall be allowed for any such substitution unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting a name with respect thereto prior to the award.

- 2.8. Supervision and Construction Procedures: The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work, using his best skill and attention. He shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the work under the contract.
- 2.9. Warranty: The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this contract will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All work not so conforming to these standards may be considered defective. If required by Owner, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. If within ten (10) days after written notice to the Contractor requesting such repairs or replacement, the Contractor should neglect to make or undertake with due diligence to the same, the City may make such repairs or replacements. All indirect and direct costs of such correction or removal or replacement shall be at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor will also bear the expenses of making good all work of others destroyed or damaged by the correction, removal or replacement of his defective work.
- 2.10. **Permits, Fees, & Notices:** The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits, governmental fees and licenses necessary for the proper execution and completion The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, of the work. ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the work. If the Contractor observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance in any respect, he shall promptly notify the Owner in writing, and any necessary changes shall be adjusted by approximate modification. If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the Owner, he shall assume full responsibility and shall bear all costs attributable.
- 2.11. **Responsibility for Those Performing the Work:** The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of all his employees and all sub-contractors, their agents and employees, and all other persons performing any of the work under a contract with the Contractor.
- 2.12. **Use of the Site:** The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits and the Contract Documents, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with any materials or equipment.
- 2.13. Cleanup: The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of work he shall remove all his waste materials and rubbish from and about the project, as well as all his tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.
- 2.14. Insurance Requirements: The selected Bidder agrees to procure and maintain, at

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B Its own cost, policy(s) of insurance sufficient to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Bidder pursuant to this Section. Such insurance shall be in addition to any other insurance requirements imposed by this Contract or by law. The Bidder shall not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed pursuant to this Section by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, durations, or types. Bidder shall procure and maintain and, if applicable, shall cause any Subcontractor of the Bidder to procure and maintain insurance coverage listed below. Such coverage shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the Owner. All coverage shall be continuously maintained to cover all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Bidder pursuant to this Section. In the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage. Minimum coverage limits shall be as indicated below unless specified otherwise in the Special Conditions:

> Worker Compensation: Contractor shall comply with all State of Colorado (a) Regulations concerning Workers' Compensation insurance coverage.

(b) General Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of:

One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per job aggregate.

The policy shall be applicable to all premises and operations. The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed operations), personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket contractual, products, and completed operations. The policy shall include coverage for explosion, collapse, and underground hazards. The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision.

(c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of not less than:

One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) aggregate

This policy shall provide coverage to protect the contractor against liability incurred as a result of the professional services performed as a result of responding to this Solicitation.

With respect to each of Bidder's owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles assigned to be used in performance of the Work. The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. The policies required by paragraphs (b), and (c) above shall be endorsed to include the Grand Junction Housing Authority, and the Grand Junction Housing Authority's officers and employees as additional insureds. Every policy required above shall be primary insurance, and any insurance carried by the Owner, its officers, or its employees, or carried by or provided through any insurance pool of the Owner, shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by Bidder. No additional insured endorsement to any required policy shall contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from completed

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B operations. The bioder shall be solely responsible for any deductible losses under any policy required above.

- 2.15. Indemnification: The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and all its officers, employees, insurers, and self-insurance pool, from and against all liability, suits, actions, or other claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent act or fault of the Contractor, or of any Contractor's agent, employee, sub-contractor or supplier in the execution of, or performance under, any contract which may result from proposal award. Contractor shall pay any judgment with cost which may be obtained against the Owner growing out of such injury or damages.
- 2.16. **Miscellaneous Conditions:** Material Availability: Contractors must accept responsibility for verification of material availability, production schedules, and other pertinent data prior to submission of bid. It is the responsibility of the bidder to notify the Owner immediately if materials specified are discontinued, replaced, or not available for an extended period of time. OSHA Standards: All bidders agree and warrant that services performed in response to this invitation shall conform to the standards declared by the US Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA). In the event the services do not conform to OSHA standards, the Owner may require the services to be redone at no additional expense to the Owner.
- 2.17. **Time:** The Contract Time is the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for completion of the work. The date of commencement of the work is the date established in a Notice to Proceed. If there is no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Contract or such other date as may be established therein, or as established as entered on the Bid Form. The Date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portions thereof is the date certified by the Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 2.18. **Progress & Completion:** The Contractor shall begin work on the date of commencement as defined in the Contract, and shall carry the work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall complete it within the contract time.
- 2.19. **Payment & Completion:** The Contract Sum is stated in the Contract and is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for the performance of the work under the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of written notice that the work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of application for payment, the Owner's Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and, when he finds the work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner shall make payment in the manner provided in the Contract Documents.
- 2.20. Quantities of Work and Unit Price: Materials or quantities stated as unit price items in the Bid are supplied only to give an indication of the general scope of the Work. The City does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual amount of Work or material will correspond therewith, and reserves the right after award to increase or decrease the quantity of any unit item of the Work without a change in the unit price. The City also reserves the right to make changes in the Work including the right to delete any bid item in its entirety or add additional bid items.

- 2.21. Protection of Persons & Property: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of any public authority having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss. Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing safeguards for safety and protection, and all reasonable precautions, including posting danger signs or other warnings against hazards promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities. When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct by the Contractor in the execution of the work, or in consequence of the non-execution thereof by the Contractor, he shall restore, at his own expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be directed, or it shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner.
- **2.22. Changes in the Work:** The Owner, without invalidating the contract, may order changes in the work within the general scope of the contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the contract sum and the contract time being adjusted accordingly. All such changes in the work shall be authorized by Change Order and shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the contract documents. A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor signed by the Owner issued after the execution of the contract, authorizing a change in the work or an adjustment in the contract sum or the contract time. The contract sum and the contract time may be changed only by Change Order.
- 2.23. Claims for Additional Cost or Time: If the Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in the contract sum or an extension in the contract time, he shall give the Owner written notice thereof within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute the work, except in an emergency endangering life or property in which case the Contractor shall precede in accordance with the regulations on safety. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. Any change in the contract sum or contract time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order.
- **2.24. Minor Changes in the Work:** The Owner shall have authority to order minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment in the contract sum or an extension of the contract time and not inconsistent with the intent of the contract documents.
- **2.25.** Field Orders: The Owner may issue written Field Orders which interpret the Contract Documents in accordance with the specifications, or which order minor changes in the work in accordance with the agreement, without change in the contract sum or time. The Contractor shall carry out such Field Orders promptly.
- 2.26. Uncovering & Correction of Work: The Contractor shall promptly correct all work rejected by the Owner as defective or as failing to conform to the contract documents whether observed before or after substantial completion and whether or not fabricated installed or competed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected work, including the cost of the Owner's additional services thereby made necessary. If within one (1) year after the date of completion or

- DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the contract documents, any of the work found to be defective or not in accordance with the contract documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discover of condition. All such defective or non-conforming work under the above paragraphs shall be removed from the site where necessary and the work shall be corrected to comply with the contract documents without cost to the Owner. The Contractor shall bear the cost of making good all work of separate Contractors destroyed or damaged by such removal or correction. If the Owner prefers to accept defective or non-conforming work, he may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction. in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect an appropriate reduction in the payment or contract sum, or, if the amount is determined after final payment, it shall be paid by the Contractor.
  - 2.30. Amendment: No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract. All amendments to the contract shall be made in writing by the Owner.
  - 2.31. **Assignment:** The Contractor shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey any contract resulting from this IFB, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval from the Owner.
  - 2.32. Compliance with Laws: Bids must comply with all Federal, State, County and local laws governing or covering this type of service and the fulfillment of all ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) requirements.
  - 2.33. **Confidentiality:** All information disclosed by the Owner to the Contractor for the purpose of the work to be done or information that comes to the attention of the Contractor during the course of performing such work is to be kept strictly confidential.
  - 2.34. **Conflict of Interest:** No public official and/or City/County employee shall have interest in any contract resulting from this IFB.
  - 2.35. **Contract Termination:** This contract shall remain in effect until any of the following occurs: (1) contract expires; (2) completion of services; (3) acceptance of services or, (4) for convenience terminated by either party with a written Notice of Cancellation stating therein the reasons for such cancellation and the effective date of cancellation.
  - 2.36. **Employment Discrimination:** During the performance of any services per agreement with the Owner, the Contractor, by submitting a Bid, agrees to the following conditions:
    - 2.36.1. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, age, handicap, or national origin except when such condition is a legitimate occupational qualification reasonably necessary for the normal operations of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places,

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B visible to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- 2.36.2. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, shall state that such Contractor is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
- 2.36.3. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule, or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.
- 2.37. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and Immigration Compliance: The Offeror certifies that it does not and will not during the performance of the contract employ illegal alien workers or otherwise violate the provisions of the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and/or the immigration compliance requirements of State of Colorado C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, et.seg. (House Bill 06-1343).
- 2.38. Ethics: The Contractor shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee, official, or agent of the Owner.
- 2.39. Failure to Deliver: In the event of failure of the Contractor to deliver services in accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the Owner, after due oral or written notice, may procure the services from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any costs resulting in additional purchase and administrative services. This remedy shall be in addition to any other remedies that the Owner may have.
- 2.40. Failure to Enforce: Failure by the Owner at any time to enforce the provisions of the contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the Owner to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with its terms.
- 2.41. Force Majeure: The Contractor shall not be held responsible for failure to perform the duties and responsibilities imposed by the contract due to legal strikes, fires, riots, rebellions, and acts of God beyond the control of the Contractor, unless otherwise specified in the contract.
- 2.42. Independent Contractor: The Contractor shall be legally considered an Independent Contractor and neither the Contractor nor its employees shall, under any circumstances, be considered servants or agents of the Owner. The Owner shall be at no time legally responsible for any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, its servants, or agents. The Owner shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor any federal or state unemployment taxes, federal or state income taxes, Social Security Tax or any other amounts for benefits to the Contractor. Further, the Owner shall not provide to the Contractor any insurance coverage or other benefits, including Workers' Compensation, normally provided by the Owner for its employees.
- 2.43. **Nonconforming Terms and Conditions:** A bid that includes terms and conditions that do not conform to the terms and conditions of this Invitation for Bid is subject to rejection as non-responsive. The Owner reserves the right to permit the Contractor

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B to withoraw honcomorming terms and conditions from its bid prior to a determination by the Owner of non-responsiveness based on the submission of nonconforming terms and conditions.

- 2.44. Ownership: All plans, prints, designs, concepts, etc., shall become the property of the Owner.
- 2.45. **Oral Statements:** No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this document and/or resulting agreement. All modifications to this request and any agreement must be made in writing by the Owner.
- Patents/Copyrights: The Contractor agrees to protect the Owner from any claims 2.46. involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights. In no event shall the Owner be Contractor for any/all suits arising on the grounds of liable to the patent(s)/copyright(s) infringement. Patent/copyright infringement shall null and void any agreement resulting from response to this IFB.
- 2.47. **Remedies:** The Contractor and Owner agree that both parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code.
- 2.48. **Venue:** Any agreement as a result of responding to this IFB shall be deemed to have been made in, and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the City of Grand Junction, Mesa County, Colorado.
- 2.49. **Expenses:** Expenses incurred in preparation, submission and presentation of this IFB are the responsibility of the company and cannot be charged to the Owner.
- 2.50. Sovereign Immunity: The Owner specifically reserves its right to sovereign immunity pursuant to Colorado State Law as a defense to any action arising in conjunction to this agreement.
- 2.51. **Non-Appropriation of Funds:** The contractual obligation of the Owner under this contract is contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds from this fiscal year budget as approved by the City Council or Board of County Commissioners from this fiscal year only. State of Colorado Statutes prohibit obligation of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which the budget was approved. Anticipated expenditures/obligations beyond the end of the current Owner's fiscal year budget shall be subject to budget approval. Any contract will be subject to and must contain a governmental non-appropriation of funds clause.
- **Cooperative Purchasing:** Purchases as a result of this solicitation are primarily for 2.52. the City/County. Other governmental entities may be extended the opportunity to utilize the resultant contract award with the agreement of the successful provider and the participating agencies. All participating entities will be required to abide by the specifications, terms, conditions and pricings established in this Bid. The quantities furnished in this bid document are for only the City/County. It does not include quantities for any other jurisdiction. The City or County will be responsible only for the award for its jurisdiction. Other participating entities will place their own awards on their respective Purchase Orders through their purchasing office or use their purchasing card for purchase/payment as authorized or agreed upon between the provider and the individual entity. The City/County accepts no liability for

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B payment of orders placed by other participating jurisdictions that choose to piggyback on our solicitation. Orders placed by participating jurisdictions under the terms of this solicitation will indicate their specific delivery and invoicing instructions.

2.53. Keep Jobs in Colorado Act: Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with Article 17 of Title 8, Colorado Revised Statutes requiring 80% Colorado labor to be employed on public works. Contractor shall, upon reasonable notice provided by the Owner, permit the Owner to inspect documentation of identification and residency required by C.R.S. §8-17-101(2)(a). If Contractor claims it is entitled to a waiver pursuant to C.R.S. §8-17-101(1), Contractor shall state that there is insufficient Colorado labor to perform the work such that compliance with Article 17 would create an undue burden that would substantially prevent a project from proceeding to completion, and shall include evidence demonstrating the insufficiency and undue burden in its response.

Unless expressly granted a waiver by the Owner pursuant to C.R.S. §8-17-101(1), Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with Article 17 of Title 8, Colorado Revised Statutes requiring 80% Colorado labor to be employed on public works. Contractor shall, upon reasonable notice provided by the Owner, permit the Owner to inspect documentation of identification and residency required by C.R.S. §8-17-101(2)(a).

- 2.53.1. "Public project" is defined as:
  - (a) any construction, alteration, repair, demolition, or improvement of any land, building, structure, facility, road, highway, bridge, or other public improvement suitable for and intended for use in the promotion of the public health, welfare, or safety and any maintenance programs for the upkeep of such projects
  - (b) for which appropriate or expenditure of moneys may be reasonably expected to be \$500,000.00 or more in the aggregate for any fiscal year
  - (c) except any project that receives federal moneys.

### 3. Statement of Work/Specifications

- 3.1. General: The City of Grand Junction, on behalf of the Grand Junction Housing Authority, is soliciting competitive bids from gualified and interested companies to establish an annual contract for all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies required to provide pricing for flooring and/or carpet replacement, including installation and disposal, on an "as needed basis" for the various apartment, townhome, and condominium units for the Grand Junction Housing Authority, as per the scope and specifications stated herein. All dimensions and scope of work should be verified by Contractors prior to submission of bids.
- **3.2. Project Description:** Flooring repairs and replacement for vacant units, occupied units as well as common areas, all on an as needed basis. The GJHA has offices, common areas, and 565 dwelling units that require maintenance and/or replacement on a semi-regular, unpredictable basis. Services may be required for dwelling unit turnovers, rehab, property improvements, maintenance and/or repairs of occupied dwelling units.

#### 3.3. Special Conditions & Provisions:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B materials, process, mechanism, and/or equipment are indicated, described or specified by patent, proprietary, or brand name, or by name of manufacturer, such wording will be deemed to be used for the purpose of facilitating minimum acceptable requirements and will be deemed to be followed by the words, "or equal". Proof satisfactory to the City must be provided by Bidder to show that the alternative product/equipment/vehicle is in fact, equal to specification requirements.

> The City of Grand Junction has determined that the brand name, model name/numbers on the Vendor's Bid Form Specification Sheet, meets the specifications as stated in the solicitation documents. These manufacturer's references are not intended to be restrictive but descriptive of the type and quality the City of Grand Junction desires to purchase. Bids for similar manufactured items of like quality will be considered if the bid is fully noted with the manufacturer's brand name and model. The City of Grand Junction reserves the right to determine products of equal value. Vendors will not be allowed to make unauthorized substitutions after award is made.

> 3.3.2 **Pricing:** Pricing shall be all inclusive to include but not be limited to: all labor, equipment, supplies, materials, freight (F.O.B. Destination – Freight Pre-paid and Allowed to each site), travel, mobilization costs, fuel, set-up and take down costs, and full-time inspection costs, and all other costs related to the successful completion of the project.

> The Owner shall not pay nor be liable for any other additional costs including but not limited to: taxes, shipping charges, insurance, interest, penalties, termination payments, attorney fees, liquidated damages, etc.

> 3.3.3 Contractor must meet all federal, state, and local rules, regulations, and requirements for providing such services.

3.3.4 Licenses and Permits: Contractor is responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses and permits required for Construction, at Contractors expense. See Section 2.10.

3.3.5 Safety: In addition to Sections 2.21 Protection of Persons and Property, and 2.16 Miscellaneous Conditions – OSHA Standards, Contractor shall not utilize any equipment in a manner that impedes tenant access or creates a hazard to tenants or workers.

3.3.6 Cleanup/Project Completion: In addition to Section 2.13 Cleanup, excess adhesives shall be cleaned up by the Contractor. Clean spills immediately to prevent staining or discoloration of adjacent surfaces. Follow manufacturer's safety recommendations when using solvents or other products. Notify Owner 24 hours prior to project demobilization to schedule a walkthrough and acceptance of the completed work.

3.3.7 **Contractor Staging Area:** Awarded Contractor shall coordinate with Owner for proposed project staging area (if required).

3.3.8 Freight/Shipping: All freight/shipping shall be F.O.B. Destination – Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed to the specific project location.

3.3.9 **Equipment/Product/Materials Quantities:** Contractor shall be responsible for determining all measurements for correctness, and all quantities of equipment/products/materials required for successful project completion.

3.3.10 **Working Schedule:** As needed and determined by Owner's Project Manager.

3.3.11 **Project Schedule:** On an "as needed basis" for the 2016 calendar year.

3.3.12 **Award:** It is the GJHA's intent to award to a single Contractor. However, the GJHA reserves the right to split awards as necessary, and if it is deemed in the best interest of the GJHA.

3.3.13 **Contract:** A binding contract shall consist of: (1) the IFB and any amendments thereto, (2) the bidder's response (bid) to the IFB, (3) clarification of the bid, if any, and (4) the City's Purchasing Department's acceptance of the bid by "Notice of Award" or by "Purchase Order". All Exhibits and Attachments included in the IFB shall be incorporated into the contract by reference.

A. The contract expresses the complete agreement of the parties and, performance shall be governed solely by the specifications and requirements contained therein.

B. Any change to the contract, whether by modification and/or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and approved by and between the duly authorized representative of the bidder and the City Purchasing Division or by a modified Purchase Order prior to the effective date of such modification. The bidder expressly and explicitly understands and agrees that no other method and/or no other document, including acts and oral communications by or from any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the contract.

3.3.14 **Contract Renewal Options:** The Owner, with the mutual agreement from the Contractor, may have three (3) additional, one year renewal options to extend the contract based upon satisfactory performance and price stability. If the option for the renewal is exercised by the Owner, the Owner and the Contractor may negotiate terms, conditions, and price. Orders placed for the option years are dependent upon the availability and actual appropriations of funds for that year.

#### 3.4. Scope of Work:

#### General

- A response time of 48 hours from the time work is requested to the time a project starts is required.
- Provide labor, material, equipment, tools, conveyances, etc., to provide a complete or partial flooring and/or carpet replacement.

#### Surface Preparation for Flooring Replacement

- DocuSign Envelope ID: 7455F253-3A30-44D0-82CC-6F569B7FB16B Kemove all binding strips or other restrictive molding from doorways, walls, etc.
  - Undercut wood door casings where possible so that flooring can be slid under it.
  - Concrete subfloors must be dry, smooth and free from dust, solvent, paint, wax, grease, oil or other materials.
  - Wood subfloors which are loose or squeak must be screwed down in order to be secured.
  - Completely remove all residual adhesives.
  - The surface must be flat, within 3/16" in 10'radius or 1/8" in 6' radius.
  - Follow all manufacturer recommendations for surface preparation for any and all products used.

#### Execution

- Flooring products must maintain proper temperature before, during and after installation in order to minimize dimensional changes.
- When using flooring from two or more cartons, make sure pattern and run numbers are the same.
- Select flooring from 2-3 cartons at a time to even out color variation and to ensure a random appearance.
- For Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), offset the joints by at least 6" and position planks in a random fashion for the best appearance. For carpet tiles, use a 3-step 8-inch offset pattern.
- Follow all manufacturer recommendations for installation of any and all products used.
- 3.5. Specifications: All specifications listed shall be Brand Name or Equal to the following:
  - Aladdin commercial carpet squares by Mohawk. Style: 1T79 Design Medley Tile. Color: 868 Earthscape. Tile Size: 24" W X 24" L.
  - Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT) by Mohawk. 12mm, 48" L X 6" W, Natural Oak with matching Mohawk recommended LVT adhesive.

• Underlayment Rotary Lauan Plywood or Fiberboard. Underlayment shall be no less than 1/4" in thickness.

### 3.6. IFB Tentative Time Schedule:

Invitation For Bids available Inquiry deadline, no questions after this date Addendum Posted Submittal deadline for proposals GJHA Board of Directors Approval Contract execution Insurance Cert due December 28, 2015 January 8, 2016 January 11, 2016 January 15, 2016 February 22, 2016 February 23, 2016 February 26, 2016

#### 3.7. Questions Regarding Scope of Services: Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer

City of Grand Junction duaneh@gjcity.org

# 

The undersigned Bidder, in compliance with the Invitation for Bids, having examined the Instruction to Bidders, General Contract Conditions, Statement of Work, Specifications, and any and all Addenda thereto, having investigated the location of, and conditions affecting the proposed work, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials and supplies, and to perform all work for the Project in accordance with Contract Documents, within the time set forth and at the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract Documents, of which this Contractor's Bid Form is a part.

The undersigned Contractor does hereby declare and stipulate that this offer is made in good faith without collusion or connection to any person(s) providing an offer for the same work, and that it is made in pursuance of, and subject to, all terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, the Specifications, and all other Solicitation Documents, all of which have been examined by the undersigned.

The Contractor also agrees that if awarded the Contract, to provide insurance certificates within ten (10) working days of the date of Notification of Award. Submittal of this offer will be taken by the Owner as a binding covenant that the Contractor will be prepared to complete the project in its entirety.

The Owner reserves the right to make the award on the basis of the offer deemed most favorable, to waive any formalities or technicalities and to reject any or all offers. It is further agreed that this offer may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after closing time. Submission of clarifications and revised offers automatically establish a new thirty day (30) period.

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: the undersigned Contractor acknowledges receipt of Addenda to the Solicitation, Specifications, and other Contract Documents.

State number of Addenda received: \_\_\_\_\_\_.

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure all Addenda have been received and acknowledged.

# <u>PRICE BID SCHEDULE:</u> IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
1.	Sqft	Price per square foot for all flooring removal, cleaning, prep and disposal.	

#### Item 1 Unit Price Written:\_\_\_\_\_

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
2.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of the underlayment, as per scope of work/specifications.	

#### Item 2 Unit Price Written:

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
3.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of commercial carpet squares, as per scope of work/specifications.	

#### Item 3 Unit Price Written:

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
4.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), as per scope of work/specifications.	

#### Item 4 Unit Price Written:

*By signing below*, the Undersigned agree to comply with all terms and conditions contained herein.

Company: \_\_\_\_\_

Authorized
Signature:

Title: \_\_\_\_\_





**Purchasing Division** 



# Invitation for Bid

### IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

**Responses Due:** 

January 15, 2016 prior to 3:00 PM MST <u>Accepting Electronic Responses Only</u> <u>Responses Only Submitted Through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing</u> System (RMEPS)

https://www.rockymountainbidsystem.com/default.asp

(Purchasing Representative does not have access or control of the vendor side of RMEPS. If website or other problems arise during response submission, vendor <u>MUST</u> contact RMEPS to resolve issue prior to the response deadline. 800-835-4603)

Purchasing Representative:

Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer duaneh@gjcity.org Phone (970) 244-1545

This document has been developed specifically to solicit competitive responses for this solicitation, and may not be the same as previous City of Grand Junction/Mesa County solicitations. All vendors are urged to thoroughly review this solicitation prior to responding. Submittal by **FAX, EMAIL or HARD COPY IS NOT ACCEPTABLE** for this solicitation.

# **Invitation for Bids**

### Table of Contents

- Section 1 Instruction to Bidders
- Section 2 General Contract Conditions
- Section 3 Statement of Work
- Section 4 Contractor's Bid Form

Price Proposal/Bid Schedule Form

Attachments

### 1. Instructions to Bidders

- **1.1. Purpose:** The City of Grand Junction, on behalf of the Grand Junction Housing Authority, is soliciting competitive bids from qualified and interested companies to establish an annual contract for all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies required to provide pricing for flooring and/or carpet replacement, including installation and disposal, on an "as needed basis" for the various apartment, townhome, and condominium units for the Grand Junction Housing Authority, as per the scope and specifications stated herein. All dimensions and scope of work should be verified by Contractors prior to submission of bids.
- **1.2. The Owner:** The Owner is the Grand Junction Housing Authority (GJHA) and is referred to throughout this Solicitation. The term Owner means the Owner or his authorized representative.
- 1.3. Submission: Each bid response shall be submitted in electronic format only, and through the Rocky Mountain E-Purchasing website only (https://www.rockymountainbidsystem.com/default.asp). This site offers both "free" and "paving" registration options that allow for full access of the Owner's documents and for electronic submission of proposals. (Note: "free" registration may take up to 24 hours to process. Please Plan accordingly.) Please view our "Electronic Vendor Registration Guide" at http://www.gjcity.org/BidOpenings.aspx for details. (Purchasing Representative does not have access or control of the vendor side of RMEPS. If website or other problems arise during response submission, vendor MUST contact RMEPS to resolve issue prior to the response deadline. 800-835-4603)
- **1.4. Printed Form for Price Bid:** All Price Bids must be made upon the Contractor's Bid Form attached, and should give the amounts both in words and in figures, and must be signed and acknowledged by the bidder.
- **1.5. Exclusions:** No oral, telephonic, emailed, or facsimile bid will be considered
- **1.6. Contract Documents:** The complete IFB and bidder's response compose the Contract Documents. Copies of these documents can be obtained from the City Purchasing website, <u>http://www.gjcity.org/BidOpenings.aspx</u>.
- **1.7. Examination of Specifications:** Bidders shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with the project Statement of Work. The failure or omission of any Offeror to receive or examine any form, addendum, or other document shall in no way relieve any Offeror from any obligation with respect to his bid. The submission of a bid shall be taken as evidence of compliance with this section.
- **1.8.** Questions Regarding Statement of Work: Any information relative to interpretation of Scope of Work or specifications shall be requested of the Purchasing Representative, in writing, in ample time prior to the response time.
- **1.9.** Addenda & Interpretations: If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this solicitation, a written addendum will be posted electronically on the City's website at <a href="http://www.gicity.org/BidOpenings.aspx">http://www.gicity.org/BidOpenings.aspx</a>. The Owner is not bound by any oral representations, clarifications, or changes made in the written specifications by

Owner, unless such clarification or change is provided in written addendum form from the City Purchasing Representative.

- **1.10. Taxes:** The Owner is exempt from State retail and Federal tax. The bid price must be net, exclusive of taxes.
- **1.11. Offers Binding 60 Days:** Unless otherwise specified, all formal offers submitted shall be binding for sixty (60) calendar days following opening date, unless the Bidder, upon request of the Purchasing Representative, agrees to an extension.
- **1.12. Collusion Clause:** Each bidder by submitting a bid certifies that it is not party to any collusive action or any action that may be in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act. Any and all bids shall be rejected if there is evidence or reason for believing that collusion exists among bidders. The Owner may, or may not, accept future bids for the same services or commodities from participants in such collusion.
- **1.13. Public Disclosure Record:** If the bidder has knowledge of their employee(s) or sub-contractors having an immediate family relationship with a City/County employee or elected official, the bidder must provide the Purchasing Representative with the name(s) of these individuals. These individuals are required to file an acceptable "Public Disclosure Record", a statement of financial interest, before conducting business with the City/County.

### 2. General Contract Conditions for Construction Projects

- 2.1. The Contract: This Invitation for Bid, submitted documents, and any negotiations, when properly accepted by the City/County, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the City/County and Contractor. The contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The contract may be amended or modified with Change Orders, Field Orders, or Addendums.
- **2.2. The Work:** The term Work includes all labor necessary to produce the construction required by the Contract Documents, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in such construction.
- 2.3. Execution, Correlation, Intent, and Interpretations: The Contract Documents shall be signed in not less than triplicate by the Owner (City/County) and Contractor. City/County will provide the contract. By executing the contract, the Contractor represents that he/she has visited the site, familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one, shall be as binding as if required by all. The intention of the documents is to include all labor, materials, equipment and other items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the scope of work as defined in the technical specifications and drawings contained herein. All drawings, specifications and copies furnished by the City/County are, and shall remain, City/County property. They are not to be used on any other project, and with the exception of one contract set for each party to the contract, are to be returned to the owner on request at the completion of the work.

- 2.4. The Owner: The Owner is the City of Grand Junction and/or Mesa County, Colorado and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents. The term Owner means the Owner or his authorized representative. The Owner shall, at all times, have access to the work wherever it is in preparation and progress. The Contractor shall provide facilities for such access. The Owner will make periodic visits to the site to familiarize himself generally with the progress and quality of work and to determine, in general, if the work is proceeding in accordance with the contract Based on such observations and the Contractor's Application for documents. Payment, the Owner will determine the amounts owing to the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts, as provided in the contract. The Owner will have authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract documents. Whenever, in his reasonable opinion, he considers it necessary or advisable to insure the proper implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, he will have authority to require the Contractor to stop the work or any portion, or to require special inspection or testing of the work, whether or not such work can be then be fabricated, installed, or completed. The Owner will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, and sub-Contractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work.
- 2.5. Contractor: The Contractor is the person or organization identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents. The term Contractor means the Contractor or his authorized representative. The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the General Contract Conditions of the Contract, Specification and Drawings, Scope of Work, Addenda and Modifications and shall at once report to the Owner any error, inconsistency or omission he may discover. Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner for any damage resulting from such errors, inconsistencies or omissions. The Contractor shall not commence work without clarifying Drawings, Specifications, or Interpretations.
- **2.6. Sub-Contractors:** A sub-contractor is a person or organization who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform any of the work at the site. The term sub-contractor is referred to throughout the contract documents and means a sub-contractor or his authorized representative.
- 2.7. Award of Sub-Contractors & Other Contracts for Portions of the Work: As soon as practicable after bids are received and prior to the award of the contract, the successful Contractor shall furnish to the Owner, in writing for acceptance, a list of the names of the sub-contractors or other persons or organizations proposed for such portions of the work as may be designated in the proposal requirements, or, if none is so designated, the names of the sub-contractors proposed for the principal portions of the work. Prior to the award of the contract, the Owner shall notify the successful Contractor in writing if, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any person or organization on such list. If, prior to the award of the contract, the Owner has a reasonable and substantial objection to any person or organization on such list, and refuses in writing to accept such person or organization, the successful Contractor may, prior to the award, withdraw their proposal without forfeiture of proposal security. If the successful Contractor submits an acceptable substitute with an increase in the proposed price to cover the difference in cost occasioned by the substitution, the Owner may, at their discretion, accept the increased proposal or may disgualify the Contractor. If, after the award, the Owner refuses to accept any person or organization on such list, the Contractor shall submit an acceptable substitute and the contract sum shall be increased or

decreased by the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued. However, no increase in the contract sum shall be allowed for any such substitution unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting a name with respect thereto prior to the award.

- **2.8. Supervision and Construction Procedures:** The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work, using his best skill and attention. He shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the work under the contract.
- **2.9. Warranty:** The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials and equipment furnished under this contract will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All work not so conforming to these standards may be considered defective. If required by Owner, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. If within ten (10) days after written notice to the Contractor requesting such repairs or replacement, the Contractor should neglect to make or undertake with due diligence to the same, the City may make such repairs or replacements. All indirect and direct costs of such correction or removal or replacement shall be at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor will also bear the expenses of making good all work of others destroyed or damaged by the correction, removal or replacement of his defective work.
- 2.10. Permits, Fees, & Notices: The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits, governmental fees and licenses necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work. The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the work. If the Contractor observes that any of the Contract Documents are at variance in any respect, he shall promptly notify the Owner in writing, and any necessary changes shall be adjusted by approximate modification. If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the Owner, he shall assume full responsibility and shall bear all costs attributable.
- **2.11. Responsibility for Those Performing the Work:** The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of all his employees and all sub-contractors, their agents and employees, and all other persons performing any of the work under a contract with the Contractor.
- **2.12.** Use of the Site: The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits and the Contract Documents, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with any materials or equipment.
- 2.13. Cleanup: The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by his operations. At the completion of work he shall remove all his waste materials and rubbish from and about the project, as well as all his tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.
- 2.14. Insurance Requirements: The selected Bidder agrees to procure and maintain, at

its own cost, policy(s) of insurance sufficient to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Bidder pursuant to this Section. Such insurance shall be in addition to any other insurance requirements imposed by this Contract or by law. The Bidder shall not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed pursuant to this Section by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, durations, or types. Bidder shall procure and maintain and, if applicable, shall cause any Subcontractor of the Bidder to procure and maintain insurance coverage listed below. Such coverage shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the Owner. All coverage shall be continuously maintained to cover all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Bidder pursuant to this Section. In the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage. Minimum coverage limits shall be as indicated below unless specified otherwise in the Special Conditions:

(a) Worker Compensation: Contractor shall comply with all State of Colorado Regulations concerning Workers' Compensation insurance coverage.

(b) General Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of:

One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per job aggregate.

The policy shall be applicable to all premises and operations. The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed operations), personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket contractual, products, and completed operations. The policy shall include coverage for explosion, collapse, and underground hazards. The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision.

(c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of not less than:

One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) aggregate

This policy shall provide coverage to protect the contractor against liability incurred as a result of the professional services performed as a result of responding to this Solicitation.

With respect to each of Bidder's owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles assigned to be used in performance of the Work. The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. The policies required by paragraphs (b), and (c) above shall be endorsed to include the Grand Junction Housing Authority, and the Grand Junction Housing Authority's officers and employees as additional insureds. Every policy required above shall be primary insurance, and any insurance carried by the Owner, its officers, or its employees, or carried by or provided through any insurance pool of the Owner, shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by Bidder. No additional insured endorsement to any required policy shall contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from completed operations. The Bidder shall be solely responsible for any deductible losses under any policy required above.

- 2.15. Indemnification: The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the Owner, and all its officers, employees, insurers, and self-insurance pool, from and against all liability, suits, actions, or other claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent act or fault of the Contractor, or of any Contractor's agent, employee, sub-contractor or supplier in the execution of, or performance under, any contract which may result from proposal award. Contractor shall pay any judgment with cost which may be obtained against the Owner growing out of such injury or damages.
- 2.16. Miscellaneous Conditions: Material Availability: Contractors must accept responsibility for verification of material availability, production schedules, and other pertinent data prior to submission of bid. It is the responsibility of the bidder to notify the Owner immediately if materials specified are discontinued, replaced, or not available for an extended period of time. OSHA Standards: All bidders agree and warrant that services performed in response to this invitation shall conform to the standards declared by the US Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA). In the event the services do not conform to OSHA standards, the Owner may require the services to be redone at no additional expense to the Owner.
- 2.17. Time: The Contract Time is the period of time allotted in the Contract Documents for completion of the work. The date of commencement of the work is the date established in a Notice to Proceed. If there is no Notice to Proceed, it shall be the date of the Contract or such other date as may be established therein, or as established as entered on the Bid Form. The Date of Substantial Completion of the work or designated portions thereof is the date certified by the Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- **2.18. Progress & Completion:** The Contractor shall begin work on the date of commencement as defined in the Contract, and shall carry the work forward expeditiously with adequate forces and shall complete it within the contract time.
- 2.19. Payment & Completion: The Contract Sum is stated in the Contract and is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for the performance of the work under the Contract Documents. Upon receipt of written notice that the work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of application for payment, the Owner's Project Manager will promptly make such inspection and, when he finds the work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner shall make payment in the manner provided in the Contract Documents.
- 2.20. Quantities of Work and Unit Price: Materials or quantities stated as unit price items in the Bid are supplied only to give an indication of the general scope of the Work. The City does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual amount of Work or material will correspond therewith, and reserves the right after award to increase or decrease the quantity of any unit item of the Work without a change in the unit price. The City also reserves the right to make changes in the Work including the right to delete any bid item in its entirety or add additional bid items.

- 2.21. Protection of Persons & Property: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of any public authority having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss. Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing safeguards for safety and protection, and all reasonable precautions, including posting danger signs or other warnings against hazards promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent utilities. When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct by the Contractor in the execution of the work, or in consequence of the non-execution thereof by the Contractor, he shall restore, at his own expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be directed, or it shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner.
- **2.22. Changes in the Work:** The Owner, without invalidating the contract, may order changes in the work within the general scope of the contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the contract sum and the contract time being adjusted accordingly. All such changes in the work shall be authorized by Change Order and shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the contract documents. A Change Order is a written order to the Contractor signed by the Owner issued after the execution of the contract, authorizing a change in the work or an adjustment in the contract sum or the contract time. The contract sum and the contract time may be changed only by Change Order.
- 2.23. Claims for Additional Cost or Time: If the Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in the contract sum or an extension in the contract time, he shall give the Owner written notice thereof within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the event giving rise to such claim. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute the work, except in an emergency endangering life or property in which case the Contractor shall precede in accordance with the regulations on safety. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. Any change in the contract sum or contract time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by Change Order.
- **2.24. Minor Changes in the Work:** The Owner shall have authority to order minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment in the contract sum or an extension of the contract time and not inconsistent with the intent of the contract documents.
- **2.25.** Field Orders: The Owner may issue written Field Orders which interpret the Contract Documents in accordance with the specifications, or which order minor changes in the work in accordance with the agreement, without change in the contract sum or time. The Contractor shall carry out such Field Orders promptly.
- 2.26. Uncovering & Correction of Work: The Contractor shall promptly correct all work rejected by the Owner as defective or as failing to conform to the contract documents whether observed before or after substantial completion and whether or not fabricated installed or competed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected work, including the cost of the Owner's additional services thereby made necessary. If within one (1) year after the date of completion or

within such longer period of time as may be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the contract documents, any of the work found to be defective or not in accordance with the contract documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discover of condition. All such defective or non-conforming work under the above paragraphs shall be removed from the site where necessary and the work shall be corrected to comply with the contract documents without cost to the Owner. The Contractor shall bear the cost of making good all work of separate Contractors destroyed or damaged by such removal or correction. If the Owner prefers to accept defective or non-conforming work, he may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect an appropriate reduction in the payment or contract sum, or, if the amount is determined after final payment, it shall be paid by the Contractor.

- **2.30. Amendment:** No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract. All amendments to the contract shall be made in writing by the Owner.
- **2.31.** Assignment: The Contractor shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey any contract resulting from this IFB, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval from the Owner.
- **2.32. Compliance with Laws:** Bids must comply with all Federal, State, County and local laws governing or covering this type of service and the fulfillment of all ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) requirements.
- **2.33. Confidentiality:** All information disclosed by the Owner to the Contractor for the purpose of the work to be done or information that comes to the attention of the Contractor during the course of performing such work is to be kept strictly confidential.
- **2.34.** Conflict of Interest: No public official and/or City/County employee shall have interest in any contract resulting from this IFB.
- **2.35. Contract Termination**: This contract shall remain in effect until any of the following occurs: (1) contract expires; (2) completion of services; (3) acceptance of services or, (4) for convenience terminated by either party with a written *Notice of Cancellation* stating therein the reasons for such cancellation and the effective date of cancellation.
- **2.36.** Employment Discrimination: During the performance of any services per agreement with the Owner, the Contractor, by submitting a Bid, agrees to the following conditions:
  - **2.36.1.** The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, age, handicap, or national origin except when such condition is a legitimate occupational qualification reasonably necessary for the normal operations of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places,

visible to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- **2.36.2.** The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, shall state that such Contractor is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
- **2.36.3.** Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule, or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.
- 2.37. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and Immigration Compliance: The Offeror certifies that it does not and will not during the performance of the contract employ illegal alien workers or otherwise violate the provisions of the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and/or the immigration compliance requirements of State of Colorado C.R.S. § 8-17.5-101, *et.seq*. (House Bill 06-1343).
- **2.38. Ethics:** The Contractor shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee, official, or agent of the Owner.
- **2.39.** Failure to Deliver: In the event of failure of the Contractor to deliver services in accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the Owner, after due oral or written notice, may procure the services from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any costs resulting in additional purchase and administrative services. This remedy shall be in addition to any other remedies that the Owner may have.
- **2.40.** Failure to Enforce: Failure by the Owner at any time to enforce the provisions of the contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the Owner to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with its terms.
- **2.41.** Force Majeure: The Contractor shall not be held responsible for failure to perform the duties and responsibilities imposed by the contract due to legal strikes, fires, riots, rebellions, and acts of God beyond the control of the Contractor, unless otherwise specified in the contract.
- 2.42. Independent Contractor: The Contractor shall be legally considered an Independent Contractor and neither the Contractor nor its employees shall, under any circumstances, be considered servants or agents of the Owner. The Owner shall be at no time legally responsible for any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, its servants, or agents. The Owner shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor any federal or state unemployment taxes, federal or state income taxes, Social Security Tax or any other amounts for benefits to the Contractor. Further, the Owner shall not provide to the Contractor any insurance coverage or other benefits, including Workers' Compensation, normally provided by the Owner for its employees.
- **2.43.** Nonconforming Terms and Conditions: A bid that includes terms and conditions that do not conform to the terms and conditions of this Invitation for Bid is subject to rejection as non-responsive. The Owner reserves the right to permit the Contractor

to withdraw nonconforming terms and conditions from its bid prior to a determination by the Owner of non-responsiveness based on the submission of nonconforming terms and conditions.

- **2.44. Ownership:** All plans, prints, designs, concepts, etc., shall become the property of the Owner.
- **2.45. Oral Statements:** No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this document and/or resulting agreement. All modifications to this request and any agreement must be made in writing by the Owner.
- 2.46. Patents/Copyrights: The Contractor agrees to protect the Owner from any claims involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights. In no event shall the Owner be liable to the Contractor for any/all suits arising on the grounds of patent(s)/copyright(s) infringement. Patent/copyright infringement shall null and void any agreement resulting from response to this IFB.
- **2.47. Remedies**: The Contractor and Owner agree that both parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code.
- **2.48. Venue**: Any agreement as a result of responding to this IFB shall be deemed to have been made in, and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the City of Grand Junction, Mesa County, Colorado.
- **2.49. Expenses:** Expenses incurred in preparation, submission and presentation of this IFB are the responsibility of the company and cannot be charged to the Owner.
- **2.50. Sovereign Immunity:** The Owner specifically reserves its right to sovereign immunity pursuant to Colorado State Law as a defense to any action arising in conjunction to this agreement.
- 2.51. Non-Appropriation of Funds: The contractual obligation of the Owner under this contract is contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds from this fiscal year budget as approved by the City Council or Board of County Commissioners from this fiscal year only. State of Colorado Statutes prohibit obligation of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which the budget was approved. Anticipated expenditures/obligations beyond the end of the current Owner's fiscal year budget shall be subject to budget approval. Any contract will be subject to and must contain a governmental non-appropriation of funds clause.
- 2.52. Cooperative Purchasing: Purchases as a result of this solicitation are primarily for the City/County. Other governmental entities may be extended the opportunity to utilize the resultant contract award with the agreement of the successful provider and the participating agencies. All participating entities will be required to abide by the specifications, terms, conditions and pricings established in this Bid. The quantities furnished in this bid document are for only the City/County. It does not include quantities for any other jurisdiction. The City or County will be responsible only for the award for its jurisdiction. Other participating entities will place their own awards on their respective Purchase Orders through their purchasing office or use their purchasing card for purchase/payment as authorized or agreed upon between the provider and the individual entity. The City/County accepts no liability for

payment of orders placed by other participating jurisdictions that choose to piggyback on our solicitation. Orders placed by participating jurisdictions under the terms of this solicitation will indicate their specific delivery and invoicing instructions.

2.53. Keep Jobs in Colorado Act: Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with Article 17 of Title 8, Colorado Revised Statutes requiring 80% Colorado labor to be employed on public works. Contractor shall, upon reasonable notice provided by the Owner, permit the Owner to inspect documentation of identification and residency required by C.R.S. §8-17-101(2)(a). If Contractor claims it is entitled to a waiver pursuant to C.R.S. §8-17-101(1), Contractor shall state that there is insufficient Colorado labor to perform the work such that compliance with Article 17 would create an undue burden that would substantially prevent a project from proceeding to completion, and shall include evidence demonstrating the insufficiency and undue burden in its response.

Unless expressly granted a waiver by the Owner pursuant to C.R.S. §8-17-101(1), Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with Article 17 of Title 8, Colorado Revised Statutes requiring 80% Colorado labor to be employed on public works. Contractor shall, upon reasonable notice provided by the Owner, permit the Owner to inspect documentation of identification and residency required by C.R.S. §8-17-101(2)(a).

- **2.53.1.** "Public project" is defined as:
  - (a) any construction, alteration, repair, demolition, or improvement of any land, building, structure, facility, road, highway, bridge, or other public improvement suitable for and intended for use in the promotion of the public health, welfare, or safety and any maintenance programs for the upkeep of such projects
  - (b) for which appropriate or expenditure of moneys may be reasonably expected to be \$500,000.00 or more in the aggregate for any fiscal year
  - (c) except any project that receives federal moneys.

# 3. Statement of Work/Specifications

- **3.1. General:** The City of Grand Junction, on behalf of the Grand Junction Housing Authority, is soliciting competitive bids from qualified and interested companies to establish an annual contract for all labor, equipment, materials, and supplies required to provide pricing for flooring and/or carpet replacement, including installation and disposal, on an "as needed basis" for the various apartment, townhome, and condominium units for the Grand Junction Housing Authority, as per the scope and specifications stated herein. All dimensions and scope of work should be verified by Contractors prior to submission of bids.
- **3.2. Project Description:** Flooring repairs and replacement for vacant units, occupied units as well as common areas, all on an as needed basis. The GJHA has offices, common areas, and 565 dwelling units that require maintenance and/or replacement on a semi-regular, unpredictable basis. Services may be required for dwelling unit turnovers, rehab, property improvements, maintenance and/or repairs of occupied dwelling units.

### 3.3. Special Conditions & Provisions:

**3.3.1 BRAND NAMES OR EQUAL:** Whenever in this bid invitation any particular materials, process, mechanism, and/or equipment are indicated, described or specified by patent, proprietary, or brand name, or by name of manufacturer, such wording will be deemed to be used for the purpose of facilitating minimum acceptable requirements and will be deemed to be followed by the words, "or equal". Proof satisfactory to the City must be provided by Bidder to show that the alternative product/equipment/vehicle is in fact, equal to specification requirements.

The City of Grand Junction has determined that the brand name, model name/numbers on the Vendor's Bid Form Specification Sheet, meets the specifications as stated in the solicitation documents. These manufacturer's references are not intended to be restrictive but descriptive of the type and quality the City of Grand Junction desires to purchase. Bids for similar manufactured items of like quality will be considered if the bid is fully noted with the manufacturer's brand name and model. The City of Grand Junction reserves the right to determine products of equal value. Vendors will not be allowed to make unauthorized substitutions after award is made.

3.3.2 **Pricing:** Pricing shall be all inclusive to include but not be limited to: all labor, equipment, supplies, materials, freight (F.O.B. Destination – Freight Pre-paid and Allowed to each site), travel, mobilization costs, fuel, set-up and take down costs, and full-time inspection costs, and all other costs related to the successful completion of the project.

The Owner shall not pay nor be liable for any other additional costs including but not limited to: taxes, shipping charges, insurance, interest, penalties, termination payments, attorney fees, liquidated damages, etc.

3.3.3 Contractor must meet all federal, state, and local rules, regulations, and requirements for providing such services.

3.3.4 **Licenses and Permits:** Contractor is responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses and permits required for Construction, at Contractors expense. See Section 2.10.

3.3.5 Safety: In addition to Sections 2.21 Protection of Persons and Property, and 2.16 Miscellaneous Conditions – OSHA Standards, Contractor shall not utilize any equipment in a manner that impedes tenant access or creates a hazard to tenants or workers.

3.3.6 Cleanup/Project Completion: In addition to Section 2.13 Cleanup, excess adhesives shall be cleaned up by the Contractor. Clean spills immediately to prevent staining or discoloration of adjacent surfaces. Follow manufacturer's safety recommendations when using solvents or other products. Notify Owner 24 hours prior to project demobilization to schedule a walkthrough and acceptance of the completed work.

3.3.7 **Contractor Staging Area:** Awarded Contractor shall coordinate with Owner for proposed project staging area (if required).

3.3.8 **Freight/Shipping:** All freight/shipping shall be F.O.B. Destination – Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed to the specific project location.

3.3.9 **Equipment/Product/Materials Quantities:** Contractor shall be responsible for determining all measurements for correctness, and all quantities of equipment/products/materials required for successful project completion.

3.3.10 **Working Schedule:** As needed and determined by Owner's Project Manager.

3.3.11 **Project Schedule:** On an "as needed basis" for the 2016 calendar year.

3.3.12 **Award:** It is the GJHA's intent to award to a single Contractor. However, the GJHA reserves the right to split awards as necessary, and if it is deemed in the best interest of the GJHA.

3.3.13 **Contract:** A binding contract shall consist of: (1) the IFB and any amendments thereto, (2) the bidder's response (bid) to the IFB, (3) clarification of the bid, if any, and (4) the City's Purchasing Department's acceptance of the bid by "Notice of Award" or by "Purchase Order". All Exhibits and Attachments included in the IFB shall be incorporated into the contract by reference.

A. The contract expresses the complete agreement of the parties and, performance shall be governed solely by the specifications and requirements contained therein.

B. Any change to the contract, whether by modification and/or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and approved by and between the duly authorized representative of the bidder and the City Purchasing Division or by a modified Purchase Order prior to the effective date of such modification. The bidder expressly and explicitly understands and agrees that no other method and/or no other document, including acts and oral communications by or from any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the contract.

3.3.14 **Contract Renewal Options:** The Owner, with the mutual agreement from the Contractor, may have three (3) additional, one year renewal options to extend the contract based upon satisfactory performance and price stability. If the option for the renewal is exercised by the Owner, the Owner and the Contractor may negotiate terms, conditions, and price. Orders placed for the option years are dependent upon the availability and actual appropriations of funds for that year.

### 3.4. Scope of Work:

### General

- A response time of 48 hours from the time work is requested to the time a project starts is required.
- Provide labor, material, equipment, tools, conveyances, etc., to provide a complete or partial flooring and/or carpet replacement.

## Surface Preparation for Flooring Replacement

- Remove all binding strips or other restrictive molding from doorways, walls, etc.
- Undercut wood door casings where possible so that flooring can be slid under it.
- Concrete subfloors must be dry, smooth and free from dust, solvent, paint, wax, grease, oil or other materials.
- Wood subfloors which are loose or squeak must be screwed down in order to be secured.
- Completely remove all residual adhesives.
- The surface must be flat, within 3/16" in 10'radius or 1/8" in 6' radius.
- Follow all manufacturer recommendations for surface preparation for any and all products used.

### Execution

- Flooring products must maintain proper temperature before, during and after installation in order to minimize dimensional changes.
- When using flooring from two or more cartons, make sure pattern and run numbers are the same.
- Select flooring from 2-3 cartons at a time to even out color variation and to ensure a random appearance.
- For Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), offset the joints by at least 6"and position planks in a random fashion for the best appearance. For carpet tiles, use a 3-step 8-inch offset pattern.
- Follow all manufacturer recommendations for installation of any and all products used.
- **3.5. Specifications:** All specifications listed shall be <u>Brand Name or Equal</u> to the following:
  - Aladdin commercial carpet squares by Mohawk. Style: 1T79 Design Medley Tile. Color: 868 Earthscape. Tile Size: 24" W X 24" L.
  - Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT) by Mohawk. 12mm, 48" L X 6" W, Natural Oak with matching Mohawk recommended LVT adhesive.

- Cove base Pentacle 100% rubber, 4"T X 4' L.
- Underlayment Rotary Lauan Plywood or Fiberboard. Underlayment shall be no less than 1/4" in thickness.

## 3.6. IFB Tentative Time Schedule:

Invitation For Bids available Inquiry deadline, no questions after this date Addendum Posted Submittal deadline for proposals GJHA Board of Directors Approval Contract execution Insurance Cert due December 28, 2015 January 8, 2016 January 11, 2016 January 15, 2016 February 22, 2016 February 23, 2016 February 26, 2016

### **3.7. Questions Regarding Scope of Services:** Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer City of Grand Junction

duaneh@gjcity.org

# 4. Contractor's Bid Form

The undersigned Bidder, in compliance with the Invitation for Bids, having examined the Instruction to Bidders, General Contract Conditions, Statement of Work, Specifications, and any and all Addenda thereto, having investigated the location of, and conditions affecting the proposed work, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials and supplies, and to perform all work for the Project in accordance with Contract Documents, within the time set forth and at the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract Documents, of which this Contractor's Bid Form is a part.

The undersigned Contractor does hereby declare and stipulate that this offer is made in good faith without collusion or connection to any person(s) providing an offer for the same work, and that it is made in pursuance of, and subject to, all terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, the Specifications, and all other Solicitation Documents, all of which have been examined by the undersigned.

The Contractor also agrees that if awarded the Contract, to provide insurance certificates within ten (10) working days of the date of Notification of Award. Submittal of this offer will be taken by the Owner as a binding covenant that the Contractor will be prepared to complete the project in its entirety.

The Owner reserves the right to make the award on the basis of the offer deemed most favorable, to waive any formalities or technicalities and to reject any or all offers. It is further agreed that this offer may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after closing time. Submission of clarifications and revised offers automatically establish a new thirty day (30) period.

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: the undersigned Contractor acknowledges receipt of Addenda to the Solicitation, Specifications, and other Contract Documents.

State number of Addenda received: \_\_\_\_\_\_.

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure all Addenda have been received and acknowledged.

# <u>PRICE BID SCHEDULE:</u> IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
1.	Sqft	Price per square foot for all flooring removal, cleaning, prep and disposal.	

## Item 1 Unit Price Written:\_\_\_\_

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
2.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of the underlayment, as per scope of work/specifications.	

### Item 2 Unit Price Written:\_\_\_\_\_

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
3.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of commercial carpet squares, as per scope of work/specifications.	

### Item 3 Unit Price Written:

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
4.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), as per scope of work/specifications.	

### Item 4 Unit Price Written:

*By signing below*, the Undersigned agree to comply with all terms and conditions contained herein.

Company: \_\_\_\_\_

Authorized
Signature:

Title: \_\_\_\_\_

## 4. Contractor's Bid Form

Bid Date:	1-15-16	

Project: IFB-4146-15-DH "Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016"

Bidding Company: Inside Story Carpet One
Name of Authorized Agent: Justa Webb
Email Web, tattoo @ hotmail.com
Telephone 970-245-7300 Address 360 West Gunnison Ave.
City Grand Junction State CO. Zip 8/501

The undersigned Bidder, in compliance with the Invitation for Bids, having examined the Instruction to Bidders, General Contract Conditions, Statement of Work, Specifications, and any and all Addenda thereto, having investigated the location of, and conditions affecting the proposed work, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials and supplies, and to perform all work for the Project in accordance with Contract Documents, within the time set forth and at the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the Contract Documents, of which this Contractor's Bid Form is a part.

The undersigned Contractor does hereby declare and stipulate that this offer is made in good faith without collusion or connection to any person(s) providing an offer for the same work, and that it is made in pursuance of, and subject to, all terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, the Specifications, and all other Solicitation Documents, all of which have been examined by the undersigned.

The Contractor also agrees that if awarded the Contract, to provide insurance certificates within ten (10) working days of the date of Notification of Award. Submittal of this offer will be taken by the Owner as a binding covenant that the Contractor will be prepared to complete the project in its entirety.

The Owner reserves the right to make the award on the basis of the offer deemed most favorable, to waive any formalities or technicalities and to reject any or all offers. It is further agreed that this offer may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after closing time. Submission of clarifications and revised offers automatically establish a new thirty day (30) period.

RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: the undersigned Contractor acknowledges receipt of Addenda to the Solicitation, Specifications, and other Contract Documents.

State number of Addenda received:

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure all Addenda have been received and acknowledged.

### <u>PRICE BID SCHEDULE:</u> IFB-4146-15-DH Grand Junction Housing Authority Flooring and/or Carpet Replacement Contract 2016

Item Unit		Description	Unit Price			
1.	Sqft	Price per square foot for all flooring removal, cleaning, prep and disposal.	554			

Item 1 Unit Price Written: Fifty Five Cents per Square ft

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
2.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of the underlayment, as per scope of work/specifications.	200

Item 2 Unit Price Written: Two dollars for Square H

ltem	Unit	Description	Unit Price
3.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of commercial carpet squares, as per scope of work/specifications.	326

Item 3 Unit Price Written: Three dollars and twenty Six Cents.

Item	Unit	Description	Unit Price
4.	Sqft	Price per square foot for the installation of Prequel/Prospects Plus Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT), as per scope of work/specifications.	277

Item 4 Unit Price Written: Two dollars and Seventy Seven Cents

By signing below, the Undersigned agree to comply with all terms and conditions contained herein.

Company: _	Insid.	Story (	arpet (	One.	
Authorized Signature:	Junih	U. We	66		
Title:	esperson/I	gytaller			

.

RE	IS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A RETIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMAT LOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF IN PRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, A	SURA	NCE HE C	R NEGATIVELY AMEND, DOES NOT CONSTITUT ERTIFICATE HOLDER.	EXTER E A C	ONTRACT	ER THE CO BETWEEN 1	VERAGE AFFORDED I THE ISSUING INSURER	TE HO BY TH (8), AU	E POLICIES
the	PORTANT: If the certificate holder terms and conditions of the policy dificate holder in lieu of such endor	, cerb	nin p	olicies may require an en						
_	UCER				CONTA	<b>T</b>				
Ran	d Speas(0750326)				PHONE		1-1628	PAX (A/C, Ne)n	970-2	43-9644
	Power Rd Unit 3				1 allan		amacaoon			
				Ī	-			NING COVERAGE		NAIC
Gra	nd Junction CO 81507-3	3085			INSURE	RA: Truck in	aurance Exc	hange	- Norman	21709
teur	<b>ED</b>				INSURE	Rs: Farmen	s Insurance E	xchange		21662
	INSIDE STORY, INC.					RC: Mid Cer	hury Insuran	ce Company		21687
	360 W GUNNISON AVE			Ĺ	MOURE	RDI				
				Ļ	MAURE	RE:				
_	GRAND JUNCTION		CO	81501	MOURE	RF:				
		_		NUMBER:			and the second division of the second divisio	REVISION NUMBER:	-	
NE	IS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES INCATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY R RTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	PERT	EME AIN,	NT, TERM OR CONDITION O THE INSURANCE AFFORDE	D BY	THE POLICIE	OR OTHER D	DOCUMENT WITH RESPEC	CT TO	WHICH THIS
帮	TYPE OF INSURANCE			POLICY NUMBER		POLICY	(HEREDOCTOT)			
	GENERAL LIABILITY							EACH OCCURRENCE	8	1,000,00
	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY							DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (En ocourrence)	8	100,00
1					1			MED EXP (Any one parson)	\$	5,00
= L		Y	Y	605508699		01/08/2016	3 01/08/2017	PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	5	1,000,00
ŀ								GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$	2,000,00
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:							PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$	1,000,00
-+	X POLICY JECT LOC	+			-			COMMINED SINGLE LIMIT	-	
-	AUTONOBILE LIAINLITY							COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT	1	1,000,00
- +	ANY AUTO						-	BOOILY INJURY (Per person)	\$	
	AUTOS AUTOS			605508699		01/08/2016	01/08/2017	BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	5	
H	HIRED AUTOS X AUTOS				1			PROPERTY DAMAGE		
-+	UMBRELLA LIAS OCCUR								-	
F	EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE			*	-			EACH OCCURRENCE	3	
Ē	DED RETENTION \$				1			AUGREGATE		
1	VORKERS COMPENSATION		-					X WC STATU- OTH		
. 1	NO EMPLOYERS' LABILITY Y/N				1			EL. EACH ACCIDENT	5	500.00
A	NY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE	N/A		A04172840	1	01/08/2016	01/08/2017	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	1	500,00
	SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below							E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT		500,00
	NPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC		tiach /	CORD 101, Additional Remarks &	ahed ute.	ff more space is	regulatio			
lem	oval and replacement of carpet and ha	and su	face	flooring.		÷	21			
ER		_		······································	CANC	ELLATION				
	GRAND JUNCTION HOUSIN OFFICERS & EMPLOYEES	10 Ana 10 10 00	тна	RITY	THE	EXPIRATION	DATE THE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE C REOF, NOTICE WILL   Y PROVISIONS.	ANCELI Be de	led Sefore Livered in
	1011 N 10th St				UTHOR		TATINE	-	-	
	GRAND JUNCTION		CO	81501	Rand	Spean				

.

POLICY NUMBER: 605508699

E4277 2nd Edition

### THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

# **POLICY CHANGES**

Effective Date of Change: 03/01/2016 Change Endorsement No.: 1 Named Insured: INSIDE STORY CARPET ONE

Expiration Date: 01/08/2017 Agent: 07-50-326

The following item(s):

	insured's Name	Insured's Mailing Address
	Policy Number	Company
	Effective/Expiration Date	Insured's Legal Status/Business of Insured
	Payment Plan	Premium Determination
1	Additional Interested Parties	Coverage Forms and Endorsements
_	Limits/Exposures	Deductibles
-	Covered Property/Location Description	Classification/Class Codes
	Rates	Underlying Insurance

is (are) changed to read (See Additional Page(s)):

.

The above amendments result in a change in the premium as follows:

~	NO CHANGES	TO BE ADJUSTED AT AUDIT	ADDITIONAL PREMIUM	RETURN PREMIUM
Aut	horized Representative	Signature:		1\$

91-4277, 2nd Edition 09/02 Includes Copyright material, © ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

.

page 3	
--------	--

	POLICY CHANGES ENDORSEMENT DESCRIPTION
Additional Owners, L Grand Jct Officers & 1011 N 10 Grand Jun Location :	ction, CO 81501 360 W GUNNISON AVE
GRAND JU	JNCTION, CO 81501
	а 2
	×
REMOVAL PERMIT	If Covered Property is removed to a new location that is described on this Policy Change, you may extend this insurance to include that Covered Property at each location during the removal. Coverage at each location will apply in the proportion that the value at each loca- tion bears to the value of all Covered Property being removed. This permit applies up to 10 days after the effective date of this Policy Change: after that, this insurance does not apply at the previous location.

•

91-4277, 2nd Edition 09/02 Includes Copyright material, © ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2